
Town of Hampton 
Board of Finance 

Special Budget Meeting 
Tuesday, March 4, 2014   

7pm 
Hampton Town Hall 

 
Meeting Minutes 

 
 
Call to Order:  The meeting was called to order at 7:01pm by Chair Jeff Clermont. 
 
Members present:  Ed Adelman, Nick Brown, Jeff Clermont, Dan Meade, Penny Newbury. 
Alternates present:  Luciann Norton, Rheo Brouillard. 
Members/alternates absent:   Rick Matejka, Michael Higgins. 
 
Also present:  1st Selectman Al Cahill, Selectman Bob Grindle, Treasurer Ellen Rodriguez, Recording Clerk 
Kathi Newcombe and a few audience members. 
 
Seating of alternates:  Rheo Brouillard was seated for Rick Matejka. 
 
Citizen Comments:  Randy Thompson asked what the blanks were on the budget draft; the response 
was that the budget requests were still outstanding.   
 
2014-15 budget worksession:  Jeff asked Rheo to review the budget process from last year.  Rheo 
explained that the Board of Finance BoF) reviewed the budget requests as they came in.  First, the BoF 
approved an overall budget that would raise the mil rate by .8; the General Government budget (lower 
than the previous year) passed on the first try, but the HES budget was defeated.  The BoF reduced the 
HES budget to reflect an overall mil rate increase of .5, but that budget was also defeated.  The BoF then 
reduced the HES budget to cause a zero mil increase, and that budget was also defeated.  Finally, the 
BoF sent the same zero-mil-increase budget back to the voters but added questions to inform the BoF, 
and that budget narrowly passed, with the voters indicating that the HES budget was still too high and 
that they would not be willing to pay for an increased school budget from the general fund. 
 
The outstanding areas on the budget include:  PZC, Building Department, Recreation Commission, 
sanitation (waiting for Willi Waste quote), library, solar energy, and education (both HES [numbers given 
not final] and RD11).  The budget process this year has started about three weeks ahead of last year so 
there are more holes in the budget at this point. 
Jeff stated that because the grand list has dropped, the mil rate will need to increase to maintain the 
status quo.  
Of some of the other areas: 

 Health insurance should be around 15% according to the latest information (this is the same 
pool as HES and RD11 personnel as well as the town and school personnel in Chaplin and 
Scotland). 

 Selectman mileage, supplies and computer support are anticipated to be the same as last year; 
same with town counsel. 

 Sanitation trucking will have no increase.  Sanitation payroll reflects adjustments to personnel 
pay.  The tipping fee is still outstanding but did not increase last year. 



 Land acquisition will remain at $10,000 by town resolution; currently this account stands at 
about $104,022. 

 Open space will stay at $1 at this point, but the BoS would be agreeable to putting in a higher 
figure if advocated by the populace; currently this account stands at $125,054. 

 Contingency is increased from $15,000 to $20,000. 

 An additional $800 must be added to the insurance line (already increased to $40,630 from 
$38,670 to reflect an increase) to raise umbrella coverage from $5,000,000 to $10,000,000. 

 Town Garage Maintenance has been reduced because the new building has now has all its 
minor problems resolved. 

 BoF administration will drop to $3,000, based upon last year’s actuals and this year’s anticipated 
expenditures. 

 Youth sports line item will be zero as the Youth Sports Committee no longer exists. 

 Health insurance will be adjusted because of expected employee cost share that will not be able 
to be recouped. 

RD11 BoE will present their first draft budget next week.  Jeff thinks their enrollment numbers are down 
for Hampton, and may result in a decreased budget.  The Board of Selectmen had discussed creating a 
special fund to help even out the RD11 budget fluctuations due to spikes and dips in enrollment from 
Hampton, similar to what is done in Chaplin; that concept seemed to have support from the BoF. 
Rheo noted that if all the blanks on the budget remain the same as the current year and the revenues 
stay the same, the town will be short about $140,000. 
Penny asked if the different pay scales suggested for Public Works employees had been implemented; Al 
indicated that they were. 
Ellen asked if the BoF wished to put the audit out to bid.  Nick noted that Scotland pays less than we do, 
just under $11,000; Al noted that they went out to bid last year and no longer use the same auditor as 
we do.  There would barely be time to put auditing services out to bid (auditor must be selected by 5/31 
per statute).  Jeff suggested we get through this budget first; Rheo thought we should look to the bid 
process in the fall.  Nick suggested asking O’Connor Davies to reduce their price for the upcoming 
budget; it was agreed that Nick will call and speak to Marcia Marien about a reduction in price.   
Ellen asked if the Board wants the blanks filled in with last year’s amounts; it was decided to fill in the 
amounts and bold the estimates and the name of the line being estimated, so that the budget document 
is easier to work with but still indicates estimates for the next budget meeting on the 18th. 
Penny asked if EastConn will be asked to contribute some funds to the town to make up for the fact that 
they are statutorily protected from paying property tax but still rely upon town services; Al responded 
that he will need to look into a legislative solution and pursue extra PILOT funds from the state, as he 
suggested a free bus contract or gratis IT contract for the elementary school but those ideas were 
refused by EastConn’s executive director; she suggested that the town could use the EastConn 
conference room for the annual town meeting.  It is estimated that there are around $7,000,000 worth 
of assets (real estate, motor vehicles and personal property) housed in Hampton on which the town 
does not collect taxes. 
Ed brought up the 1st Selectman increase and understands the rationale behind it but objects to a 23% 
increase.  Al supplied a document Harry Baum compiled from CCM figures that compares salaries paid in 
Hampton to those paid elsewhere; Hampton has salaries of half what other towns pay.  Al stated that he 
does not take health insurance or put in for mileage (in the budget but not tapped into) but his 
successor might; he also uses his personal cell phone without reimbursement.  In addition, our 
Administrative Assistant makes far less than those in surrounding towns.  Bob Grindle pointed out that 
this is a market adjustment, not a salary increase.  Ed saw the value of having the comparison to justify 
the increase to the townspeople at town meeting. 



Dan pointed out that the 1st Selectman is the CEO for and responsible for a nearly $6,000,000 budget, 
about $1,800,000 plus grants for the General Government budget.  As such, he does not feel that 
$30,000 for 1st Selectman is unreasonable, since the line item has not increased in many years. 
 
Citizen Comments:   Vi Marquis asked how the Town Treasurer measures up to other towns on the 
comparison sheet since she is the lowest paid employee in town hall; Dan said that the Treasurer salary 
in three towns is much higher, but most other towns are about the same or slightly higher than 
Hampton. 
 
Next meeting date, time & agenda:   The next meeting is a regular monthly meeting on Tuesday, March 
11th at 7pm and the next budget worksession will be on Tuesday, March 18th. 
 
 
Adjourn:  The meeting was adjourned at 8:08pm. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Kathi Newcombe,  
BoF Recording Clerk 
 


